#### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

GARY BERNE,	
Petitioner,	
VS.	5 <sup>th</sup> DCA Case No.: 5D09-4648
STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND MOTOR VEHICLES, BUREAU OF DRIVER IMPROVEMENT,	Supreme Court Case No.
Respondent.	

# PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

STUART HYMAN, ESQUIRE Stuart Hyman, P.A. 1520 East Amelia Street Orlando, Florida 32803 (407) 896-0536 Florida Bar Number: 319945

#

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

On November 30, 2010, the Fifth District Court of Appeal in State of Florida, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles Bureau of Driver Improvement v. Berne, \_\_ So.3d \_\_, 2010 WL 3927242, 35 Fla. L. Weekly D 2238 (Fla. 5th DCA 2010) rendered a Corrected Opinion. (App. A) The Corrected Opinion Granting Certiorari quashed the Circuit Court Order which quashed the decision of an administrative hearing officer that sustained Petitioner's driver's license suspension.

Petitioner, Berne, was arrested and submitted to a breath test on an Intoxilyzer 8000 breath testing machine utilizing version 8100.26 software. After the test results revealed a breath alcohol level in excess of 0.08, Petitioner's driver's license was administratively suspended. Petitioner requested and received a Formal Review Hearing pursuant to Section 322.2615(6)(a), Florida Statutes (2005). At the conclusion of the Formal Review Hearing, the hearing officer, who was not an attorney, sustained the suspension of Petitioner's driver's license.

Petitioner then availed himself of the right to have that decision reviewed by filing a Petition for Writ of Certiorari in the Circuit Court for the Ninth Judicial Circuit in Orange County, Florida. The Circuit Court in Berne v. Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, 17 Fla. L. Weekly Supp.75a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. Oct. 23, 2010) quashed the decision of the non lawyer hearing officer and stated in part:

Under Florida's "**Implied Consent Law**" only **approved** breath testing machines may be used to establish impairment and Florida Administrative Code Rule 11D-8.003 establishes the procedures for the **approval** of such machine. <u>State v. Muldowney</u>, 871 So.2d 911, 913 (Fla. 5th DCA 2004)

id, (emphasis added)

#### The Circuit Court also held:

Whether or not the Petitioner's breath was tested on an **approved** device is at the heart of the instant case. Despite Petitioner's best efforts, the hearing officer failed to consider the discrepancies and problems presented in the Intoxilyzer approval studies performed in April and May 2002. Competent substantial evidence existed to demonstrate that these approval studies **did not** comply with the requirements of FDLE Rule 11D-8.003 and FDLE 34 as argued by Petitioner and noted by the en banc panel in the Atkins [State v. Atkins, 16 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 251a (Fla. Orange Cty. Ct. June 30, 2008] Without independent scientific case. demonstrating the reliability of the Intoxilyzer 8000 with software version 8100.26, the hearing officer should have excluded Petitioner's breath test results.

#### id, (emphasis added)

#### The Circuit Court further held:

Absent any controlling authority on this point from the Fifth District Court of Appeal, we find that the en banc decision in <u>Atkins</u> to be well reasoned and highly persuasive in this specific case, where **Petitioner rebutted the presumption** that the Department complied with the applicable rules and regulations, and the Respondent failed to adequately meet their burden of demonstrating substantial compliance. By failing to do so, this Court finds a reversible error and grants the Petition for Writ of Certiorari.

# id, (emphasis added)

Although not contained in the Opinion of the Fifth District Court of Appeal the Circuit Court also held:

The Court finds that the Petitioner met his initial burden of rebutting the presumption created by the Department's documentary evidence that it substantially complied with the rules governing the approval of the breath testing instrument. At the hearing, both Roger Skipper and Kelly Melville testified that the machine used to test the Petitioner was an Intoxilyzer 8000 with software version 8100.26. Roger Skipper also testified that the last approval studies for the Intoxilyzer 8000 took place on April 30, 2002, (with software 8100.09), and May 29, 2002 (with software 8100.20). The reports entitled, "CMI, Inc. Intoxilyzer 8000 Instrumentation Evaluation Report," from those respective inspection dates further indicate that the approved software version was at least sixteen updates prior to the version used to test the Petitioner. From these reports it is clear that the approval of the Intoxilyzer 8000 in 2002, was far from a smooth process. As the en banc panel in State v. Atkins, et al., 16 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 251a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. June 20, 2008) noted in its "Order Granting Defendants Request to Produce," the head of FDLE's Alcohol Testing Program, Laura Barfield, "testified there "were issues" during the first attempt to evaluate the instruments resulting in the suspension of testing" until they could be repaired and returned to FDLE. During the second round of testing on May 29, 2002, only one of the two instruments met all of the requirements for certification in the FDLE's Form 34; the other test was cut short when it began emit smoke. Id.

# id, (emphasis added)

Dissatisfied with the Opinion of the three Circuit Court Judges in <u>Berne</u>, <u>id</u>., Respondent filed a Petition for Writ of Certiorari with the Fifth District Court of Appeal. The Fifth District Court of Appeal was prompted to grant the Petition and

quash the Circuit Court's decision. Following the decision, Petitioner timely filed a Notice to Invoke the Discretionary Jurisdiction of this Court.

#### **SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT**

Jurisdiction of the Supreme Court in the instant case should be invoked because the Fifth District Court of Appeal decision misapplied the standard of review for second-tier certiorari review and in doing so erroneously created new appellate jurisdiction that caused express and direct conflicts with multiple decisions involving various areas of Florida law.

#### **ARGUMENT**

THE RULING OF THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH DECISIONS OF THIS COURT AS TO THE STANDARD OF REVIEW FOR SECOND-TIER CERTIORARI REVIEW AND AS A RESULT DIRECTLY AND EXPRESSLY CONFLICTS WITH MULTIPLE DECISIONS INVOLVING VARIOUS AREAS OF FLORIDA LAW.

In essence the Fifth District Court of Appeal merely disagreed with the holding of the Circuit Court without supplying a proper sufficient legal basis for second-tier certiorari review in express and direct conflict with <u>Custer Medical Center a/a/o Maximo Masis v. United Automobile Insurance Company</u>, \_\_ So.3d \_\_, 2010 WL 4340809 (Fla., Nov. 4, 2010), <u>Haines City Cmty. Dev. v. Heggs</u>, 658 So.2d 523 (Fla. 1995), <u>Ivey v. Allstate Insurance Company</u>, 774 So.2d 679 (Fla. 2000) and Combs v. State, 436 So.2d 93 (Fla. 1983).

Unlike an appeal, common law certiorari is an entirely discretionary exercise of jurisdiction by the Court and is not taken as a matter of right. See <u>G-W Dev.</u>

Corp. v. Village of North Palm Beach Zoning Bd. of Adjustment, 317 So.2d 828, 830 (Fla. 4th DCA 1975). A common law certiorari proceeding is considered original in the sense that the subject matter of the action or proceeding before the Court is not to be reinvestigated, tried and determined upon the merits generally as upon appeal at law or writ of error. See Haines, 658 So.2d at 525-26 (quoting Basnet v. City of Jacksonville, 18 Fla. 523, 527 (1882)). A Circuit Court Appellate decision made according to the forms of law and the rules prescribed for rendering it, although it may be erroneous in its conclusion as to what the law is as applied to the facts, is not a departure from the essential requirements of law remediable by certiorari. <u>Ivey v. Allstate Insurance Company</u>, 774 So.2d at 682. The policy behind prohibiting certiorari to function as a second appeal is that the Circuit Court possesses final appellate jurisdiction in cases originating in administrative proceedings. Custer Medical Center a/a/o Maximo Masis v. United Automobile <u>Insurance Company</u>, \_\_ So.3d \_\_ 2010 WL 4340809 (Fla. Nov. 4, 2010). As this Court noted in Custer Medical Center, id. citing Haines,:

...if the role of certiorari were expanded to review the correctness of the Circuit Court's decision, it would amount to a second appeal that usurps the final appellate jurisdiction of the Circuit Court in contravention of the Florida Constitution. See <u>Id</u>. at 526 n. 4. This would deprive litigants of final judgments obtained in the Circuit Court and ignore "societal interests in ending litigation within a reasonable length of time and eliminating the amount of judicial labors involved in multiple appeals". <u>Id</u>.

By expanding its scope of review, the Fifth District Court of Appeal below:

Created a new category of appellate review never before recognized under Florida law and in express and direct conflict with authority to the contrary. District Courts have never been allowed to review decisions, under the guise of certiorari jurisdiction, simply because they are dissatisfied with the result of a decision of the Circuit Court sitting in its appellate capacity. Certiorari relief should not be afforded so differently in our various appellate courts.

#### Ivey, 774 So.2d at 683.

District Courts should consider the nature of the error and grant a Petition for Writ of Certiorari "only when there has been a violation of a clearly established principle of law resulting in a miscarriage of justice". Combs, 436 So.2d at 96 (emphasis supplied). This Court has definitively stated that certiorari cannot be used to grant a second appeal to correct the existence of mere legal error. See e.g., Ivey, 774 So.2d at 682-83. Any error by the Circuit Court, if any, did not violate the essential requirements of law and could not be the subject of second-tier certiorari review.

In quashing the decision of the Circuit Court below, the Fifth District Court of Appeal usurped the appellate authority of the Circuit Court. It ignored the underpinning of the Circuit Court ruling, that Florida's Implied Consent law under Section 316.1932, Florida Statutes (2005) imposed a primary statutory requirement that the Intoxilyzer 8000 machine itself be approved by FDLE if it is to be used as

an "approved" breath testing device. The Circuit Court, consistent with its required role for certiorari review, decided there was competent substantial evidence in the record to find that the Intoxilyzer 8000 machine itself and with 8100.26 software was not approved. The Circuit Court noted that despite Petitioner's best efforts, the hearing officer failed to consider the discrepancies and problems presented in the Intoxilyzer approval studies performed in April and May of 2002. The Circuit Court held that competent substantial evidence existed to demonstrate that the approval studies did not comply with the approval requirements of FDLE Rule 11D-8.003 and FDLE Form 34 as argued by Petitioner and noted by an en banc County Court panel decision in State v. Atkins, 16 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 251a (Fla. Cty. Ct. June 20, 2008).

The Fifth District Court of Appeal ignored, that the Circuit Court held, that Petitioner had met his initial burden of rebutting the presumption created by the Department's documentary evidence that it substantially complied with the rules governing the "approval" of the breath testing instrument. The Fifth District Court of Appeal ignored that the Circuit Court noted that Roger Skipper testified that the last approval studies for the Intoxilyzer 8000 took place on April 30, 2002 (with software 8100.09) and May 29, 2002 (with software 8100.10). The Fifth District ignored that the Circuit Court found that the Intoxilyzer 8000 machine itself could not pass the testing to the point where the FDLE approval testing had to be suspended and the tests had to be cut short because the tested machines malfunctioned including emitting smoke.

Ignoring the underpinning of the Circuit Court's ruling that the Intoxilyzer 8000 itself with 8100.09 and 8100.10 software had not been initially properly approved by FDLE, the District Court of Appeal in express and direct conflict with State v. Polak, 598 So.2d 150 (Fla. 1st DCA 2004), held the Circuit Court applied the wrong law when the Circuit Court found that the new 8100.26 software had to be approved and not just evaluated for approval. It disregarded its own decision in Dorian v. Davis, 874 So.2d 661, 663-664 (Fla. 5th DCA 2004) holding that in second-tier certiorari review the District Appellate Court is "out of the business of determining whether or not competent substantial evidence exists to support an administrative decision".

The Fifth District improperly reweighed whether there existed competent substantial evidence. It disregarded that at the time of the approval studies on April 30, 2002 and May 29, 2002 software version 8100.26 was not even in existence until 2006 and was sixteen versions removed from the 8100.09 and 8100.10 software that failed the approval testing on those dates. It ignored Rule 11D-8.003(5) F.A.C. which required FDLE to conduct evaluations for "approval" of **new** "instrumentation" under subsection (2). It also ignored that approved "Instrumentation" is defined in Rule 11D-8.003(2) F.A.C. as an Intoxilyzer 8000 that has been approved actually using software evaluated by FDLE. The Circuit Court held the "instrumentation", i.e. an Intoxilyzer 8000 including one using evaluated software version 8100.26 had never actually been approved by FDLE.

The Fifth District also ignored that its interpretation of FDLE Rule 11D-8.003 to require only an evaluation as opposed to an approval of 8100.26 software would render FDLE Rule 11D-8.003 to be an invalid exercise of delegative legislative authority pursuant to Section 120.52(8), Florida Statutes (2005). The enabling statute for FDLE, Section 316.1932(1)(a)2.g., Florida Statutes (2006), specifically restricted FDLE's authority and powers to only:

Have authority to **approve** or **disapprove** breath test instruments and **accompanying paraphernalia** for use pursuant to driving and boating under the influence provisions and related provisions located in this Chapter and Chapters 322 and 327.

#### (emphasis added)

Since FDLE had no specific statutory authority to enact a regulation or a rule, i.e. 11D-8.003 that did anything less than "approve" or "disapprove" breath test instruments and paraphernalia, the Fifth District's decision expressly and directly conflicted with <u>Gaudett v. Florida Board of Professional Engineers</u>, 900 So.2d 574, 578, 581 (Fla. 4th DCA 2004) and <u>Smith v. Florida Department of Corrections</u>, 920 So.2d 638 (Fla. 1st DCA 2005) with regard to the validity of rules that are enacted by administrative agencies and exceed proper enabling statutory authority.

The Fifth District's reweighing that the documents submitted into the record by Respondent were sufficient to meet its burden despite what the Circuit Court found was Petitioner's substantial competent evidence to the contrary also expressly and directly conflicted with Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles v. Wejebe, 954 So.2d 1245 (Fla. 3d DCA 2007) (Circuit Court applied correct law where driver submitted proof Intoxilyzer machine was not in compliance with the appropriate regulations). None of the documents introduced by Respondent at the Formal Review Hearing and relied upon by the Fifth District so much as even mentioned that the Intoxilyzer 8000 machine was an approved machine.

# **CONCLUSION**

The Fifth District Court of Appeal's decision misapplied the standard of review for second-tier certiorari review and in doing so erroneously created new

appellate jurisdiction that expressly and directly conflicts with multiple decisions involving various areas of Florida law.