IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

GARY BERNE,

Case No. SC10-2460 Lower Case No. 5D09-4648

Petitioner/Appellant,

v.

STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND MOTOR VEHICLES

Respondent/Appellee.

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

RESPONDENT'S AMENDED JURISDICTIONAL ANSWER BRIEF

STEPHEN D. HURM GENERAL COUNSEL

HEATHER ROSE CRAMER Fla. Bar No.0901600 Assistant General Counsel Department of Highway Safety And Motor Vehicles Post Office Box 540609 Lake Worth, Florida 33454 Telephone: 561-357-4169 heathercramer@flhsmv.gov

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

In this brief, Appellee/Respondent, State of Florida, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, will be referred to as the "Department." Appellant/Petitioner, Gary Berne, will be referred to as "Petitioner". Petitioner's Appendix attached to the Initial Brief on Jurisdiction and corresponding exhibit letter will be referred to as "App. __".

Following Petitioner's arrest for driving under the influence, Petitioner requested a formal administrative review of his license suspension pursuant §322.2615 (1)(b)(3), Florida Statutes. After an evidentiary hearing, the hearing officer determined by a preponderance of the evidence that sufficient cause existed to sustain Petitioner's suspension. The Department informed Petitioner in an Order dated October 20, 2006, that the suspension of his driving privilege was sustained for a period of six months.

Petitioner then sought review of the Department's Order by a Petition for Writ of Certiorari to the Circuit Court of the Ninth Judicial Circuit. On October 23, 2009, the Circuit Court issued its Order Granting Petition for Writ of Certiorari that reversed the Department's Order of license Suspension on the grounds that Petitioner rebutted the presumption that the Intoxilyzer on which he performed his breath test was properly approved for use in Florida. The Department filed a Motion for Rehearing that was denied by the circuit court on December 2, 2009.

The Department sought review of the Circuit Court's decision to the Fifth District Court of Appeal, which reversed the circuit court. The district court held that the circuit court applied the wrong law in concluding that Petitioner met his burden of rebutting the documentary evidence that established substantial compliance with FDLE rules for breath testing and concluding that the Intoxilyzer on which Petitioner was tested that utilized software version 8100.28 was not an approved device. Department of Highways Safety and Motor Vehicles v. Berne, ____So.3d ___, 2010 WL 3927242, 35 Fla. L. Weekly D2238 (Fla. 5th DCA Oct. 8, 2008). The district court further held "the circuit court clearly indicates that absent an opinion from this court, the circuit court will continue to apply the wrong law in future cases of administrative license suspensions involving breath test administered on the Intoxilyzer 8000. Accordingly, we grant the petition and quash the order under review."

Petitioner now seeks review in this Court for which the Department is filing its Answer Brief on the issue of this Court's jurisdiction.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

There is no basis for discretionary Jurisdiction in this case since there is no express conflict with a decision of this Court or another district court of appeal on the same question of law (Fla. R. App. P. 9.030(a)(2)(A) (iv)).

ARGUMENT

THERE IS NO BASIS FOR DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION TO REVIEW THIS CASE BECAUSE THE DISTRICT COURT'S RULING IS NOT IN CONFLICT WITH ANY DECISION OF THE SUPREME COURT OR OTHER DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL.

The standard for a conflict under Art V, section 3(b)(3) requires a district court decision that "on its face collides with a prior decision of the Court. . . on the same point of law so as to create an inconsistency or conflict among the precedents." <u>Kincaid v. World Insurance Co.</u>, 157 So.2d 517, 518 (Fla. 1963). That is, the "rule of decision" must come into conflict tithe this court's rule of decision. <u>Id</u>. The decision below does not meet this test because it does not contradict the cases cited by the Petitioner.

Petitioner has failed to show any conflict between the Fifth District Court of Appeal's holding in <u>Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles v. Berne</u>, ______ So.3d ____, 2010 WL 3927242, 35 Fla. L. Weekly D2238 (Fla. 5th DCA Oct. 8, 2008) and any decision of this Court or any other District Court of Appeal on the same question of law. (App. A) Therefore, there is no basis for this Court to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction to review Petitioner's case.

Contrary to Petitioner's contention the district court did not merely disagree with the circuit court's ruling. The district court reversed the circuit court because the circuit court applied the wrong law. In reversing based on an application of the wrong law, the district court stated the correct standard of review "whether the circuit court afforded procedural due process and applied the correct law." Department of Highways Safety and Motor Vehicles v. Patrick, 895 So.2d So.2d 1131, 1133 (Fla. 5th DCA 2005); Department of Highways Safety and Motor Vehicles v. Perry, 751 So.2d 1277, 1279 (Fla. 5th DCA 2000); Department of Highways Safety and Motor Vehicles v. Conahan, 619 So.2d So.2d 988, 989 (Fla. 5th DCA 1993).

The district court appropriately exercised its discretion and granted certiorari relief because the circuit court's departure from a clearly established principle of law in the instant case resulted in a miscarriage of justice. *See* <u>Ivey v. Allstate</u> <u>Insurance Company</u>, 774 So.2d 679, 682 (Fla. 2000). <u>Combs v. State</u>, 436 So. 2d 93, 96 (Fla. 1983); <u>Haines City Community Development v. Heggs</u>, 658 So.2d 523 (Fla. 1995); <u>Allstate Ins. Co. v. Kaklamanos</u>, 843 So. 2d 885, 890 (Fla. 2003).

In <u>Berne</u>, the Fifth District held that

the circuit court clearly indicates that absent an opinion from this court, the circuit court will continue to apply the wrong law in future cases of administrative license suspensions involving breath tests administered on the Intoxilyzer 8000. Accordingly, we grant the petition and quash the order under review.

Berne, 2010 WL 3927242 at 5. In footnote 1 of its opinion, the district court cites to no less than nine cases where circuit courts applied the incorrect law. *See* Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles v. Falcone, 983 So.2d 755,

756 (Fla. 2d DCA 2008); Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles v. Patrick, 895 So.2d 1131, 1133 (Fla. 5th DCA 2005); Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles v. Alliston, 813 So.2d 141, 143-144 (Fla. 2d DCA), review denied, 835 So.2d 269 (Fla. 2002); at 143-44; Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles v. Lazzopina, 807 So.2d 77, 77 (Fla. 5th DCA 2001); Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles v. Neff, 804 So.2d 519, 520 (Fla. 5th DCA 2001); Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles v. Dehart, 799 So.2d 1079, 1081 (Fla. 5th DCA 2001); Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles v. Cochran, 798 So.2d 761, 762 (Fla. 5th DCA 2001); Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles v. Mowry, 794 So.2d 657, 658 (Fla. 5th DCA 2001); Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles v. Russell, 793 So.2d 1073, 1076 (Fla. 5th DCA 2001); see also State Farm Florida Ins. Co. v. Lorenzo, 969 So.2d 393, 398-99 (Fla. 5th DCA 2007) ("Moreover, we note the error could have a pervasive, widespread effect in other proceedings.").

The Fifth District Court makes it clear that the circuit court violated a clearly established principle of law resulting in a miscarriage of justice and noted that absent action from the district court, the circuit court would continue to apply the wrong law. While the standard of certiorari review for the district court is narrow, it also contains a degree of flexibility and discretion. <u>Haines</u>, 658 So.2d at 530 (Fla. 1995). Here, the district court properly exercised that discretionary power

of certiorari review to prevent an ongoing application of the incorrect law. In <u>Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles v. Alliston</u>, 813 So.2d 141 (Fla. 2d DCA 2002), the district court recognized that one factor to consider in determining when a "miscarriage of justice" has occurred is whether the error is isolated or widespread in its application. The Second District stated

Although we conclude that the circuit court applied the incorrect law in its review of this administrative order. this does not necessarily allow us to grant certiorari in this second-tier proceeding. The more difficult question in this case is whether the circuit court's error rises to the level that can be corrected as a "miscarriage of justice." Despite all the efforts of the supreme court and the district court the test to determine when a "miscarriage of justice" has occurred remains easier to state than to In measuring the seriousness of an error to apply. determine whether second-tier certiorari is available, one consideration is whether the error is isolated in its effect or whether it is pervasive or widespread in its application to numerous other proceedings. See, e.g., Progressive Specialty Ins. Co. v. Biomechanical Trauma Ass'n, 785 So.2d 667 (Fla. 2d DCA 2001); Stilson v. Allstate Ins. Co., 692 So.2d 979 (Fla. 2d DCA 1997).

Alliston, 813 So.2d at 145 (Fla. 2d DCA 2002).

In Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles v. Hofer, 5 So.3d

766, 772 (Fla. 2nd DCA 2009) the court also considered the repetitive nature of the

error in granting certiorari. The court held

the circuit court appellate decision in this case has precedential value and will result in the repetition of the same error in other proceedings involving suspension of driver's licenses. See <u>Alliston</u>, 813 So.2d 145. Because the circuit court's application of incorrect law established a legal principle applicable to future administrative proceedings, the circuit court's decision results in a miscarriage of justice that warrants the exercise of this court's certiorari jurisdiction.

<u>Hofer</u>, 5 So.3d at 772; *See also*, <u>Department of Highway Safety and Motor</u> <u>Vehicles v. Anthol</u>, 742 So.2d 813 (Fla. 2d DCA 1999)(Because the circuit court's written decision could affect many other administrative proceedings involving the suspension of drivers' licenses, we grant certiorari relief). Based on the foregoing, the Fifth District properly granted certiorari in the instant case where the circuit court's application of wrong law amounted to a miscarriage of justice. Petitioner's arguments regarding a conflict are therefore without merit and the request to accept jurisdiction must be denied. <u>Combs</u>, 436 So. 2d at 96 (Fla. 1983); <u>Haines</u>, 658 So.2d at 530(Fla. 1995); <u>Allstate Ins. Co.</u>, 843 So. 2d at 890 (Fla. 2003).

In the instant case, the district court properly granted the Department's Petition for Writ of Certiorari because the circuit court committed a miscarriage of justice when it applied the incorrect law in holding that Intoxilyzers utilizing software version 8100.26 are not approved devices. In doing so the circuit court ignored the record evidence establishing that the Intoxilyzer was operated and maintained in accordance with FDLE rules and instead concluded, without any evidence to support such conclusion, that "the hearing officer failed to consider the

discrepancies and problems presented" although no discrepancies or problems were presented to the hearing officer and there was no evidence whatsoever that the hearing officer failed to consider what was presented by Petitioner. <u>Berne v.</u> <u>Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicle</u>, 17 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 75a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. Oct 23, 2009).

Furthermore, the district court did not reweigh the evidence in holding that the Department met its burden of establishing the admissibility of Petitioner's breath test results through the documentary evidence which established that Petitioner's breath test was performed on an Intoxilyzer that was operated and maintained substantially according to methods approved FDLE. State v. Donaldson, 579 So. 2d 728, 729 (Fla. 1991). Section 316.1932(1)(b)(2), Florida Statutes. The district court also did not reweigh the evidence in concluding that Petitioner's attempt to overcome the presumption of impairment by presenting evidence that the Intoxilyzer 8000 with software version 8100.26 is not approved was insufficient because the software was properly evaluated in accordance with FDLE rules and did not require a separate approval. As the district court recognized, Rule 11D-8.003, titled "Approval of Breath Test Methods and Instruments" specifically provides:

> (6) the availability of new instruments, software, options or modifications does not negate the approval status of previously approved instruments, software, options or modifications.

> > 8

Based on the foregoing, the district court's opinion in <u>Berne</u> is not in conflict with any decision of this Court or another district court of appeal as specified in Fla. R. App. P. 9.030(2)(A)(iv). The circuit court applied the incorrect law and the application of the incorrect law amounted to a miscarriage of justice because absent a ruling from the district court, the circuit court would continue to apply the wrong law in future cases of administrative license suspensions involving breath test administered on the Intoxilyzer 8000. <u>Haines City Community Development</u>, 658 So.2d at 530 (Fla. 1995); <u>Alliston</u>, 813 So.2d at 145 (Fla. 2d DCA 2002). Based on the foregoing, Petitioner has failed to show that this Court should exercise discretionary jurisdiction in this case.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, the Department respectfully requests this Court to deny Petitioner's request to accept jurisdiction in this matter.